
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 7, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Craig Rood 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

A. July 1, 2024 Regular Meeting 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Medical Staff Bylaws (Remains under review/development, no request for action) 

B. Board of Trustees Policy – Appointment to Board Committee Policy (For Action)          Marty Kelsey 

C. CY24 Infection Control Plan (For Action) Noreen Hove, Director of Surgical Services 

Infection Control and Grievance 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII. President of the Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President 

IX.    Committee Reports 

A. Governance Committee Marty Kelsey 

B. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

C. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

D. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditures (For Action) 

2. Laboratory Expansion Change Order – Sewar Line (For Action) 

3. Medical Imaging Phase II CMAR – Groathouse (For Action) 

4. Bad Debt (For Action) 

5. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

E. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

F. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

G. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

H. Building & Grounds Committee               Craig Rood 

I. Compliance Committee        Kandi Pendleton 

  

1/80



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 7, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

X. Board Education  Barbara Sowada 

A. Cancelled 

XI. Good of the Order                   Barbara Sowada 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/80



3/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 1 of 6 

 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

July 1, 2024 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on July 1, 

2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. Excused: Ms. 

Kandi Pendleton. 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal; Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater Board of County Commissioners; and Dr. Brianne Crofts, 

Medical Staff President. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mission and Vision 

Judge James read aloud the mission and vision statements. 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson shared a story about a patient from Mission at Castle Rock who contacted her to tell her 

what a great hospital we have and how their experience was wonderful from the beginning to the end. 

The patient could not believe how kind the staff were with them. Ms. Richardson said she told the patient 

she would share the good story with the Board at the meeting. The patient asked Ms. Richardson what 

the mission of the Hospital is and when she relayed it to them, they said that is exactly what we are doing 

at MHSC.  

AGENDA 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Judge James. Motion 

carried.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion to approve the minutes of the May 29, 2024, regular meeting as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the June 17, 2024, 

special meeting as presented was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. The 

motion to approve the minutes of the June 27, 2024, special meeting as presented was made by Judge 

James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

  

4/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

There were no comments. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

Dr. Sowada reported the bylaws are still under review. 

Performance Improvement & Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

The motion to approve the FY25 PIPS Plan as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge 

James. Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Election of Officers 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the slate of officers as recommended by the Governance Committee: 

President: Dr. Sowada 

Vice President: Ms. Pendleton 

Secretary: Judge James 

Treasurer: Mr. Kelsey 

Dr. Sowada said nominations may be made from the floor. The motion to approve the recommendations 

as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

Committee Assignments 

 

Dr. Sowada reported the updated assignments are in the meeting packet.  

Finance & Audit: Mr. Kelsey, Chair; Mr. Rood 

Building & Grounds: Mr. Rood, Chair; Mr. Kelsey 

Quality: Dr. Sowada, Chair; Judge James 

Compliance: Ms. Pendleton, Chair; Dr. Sowada 

Human Resources: Ms. Pendleton, Chair; Judge James 

Governance: Mr. Kelsey, Chair; Ms. Pendleton 

Executive Oversight: Dr. Sowada, Chair; Ms. Pendleton 

Joint Conference: Dr. Sowada; Judge James 

Foundation: Mr. Rood 

She thanked everyone for their contributions to committees. Dr. Sowada said it is the generosity of time 

and talent to make committees work that makes the work of the Board successful.  

 

Annual Conflict of Interest Disclosure 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Trustees to sign the form and return it to Administration before the next meeting. 

 

  

5/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Board of Trustees Policy – Appointment to Board Committee Policy 

 

Dr. Sowada said the policy was created to give the ability to appoint non-board members to board 

committees. Mr. Kelsey said the Board recently approved amendments to the bylaws and one of those 

was that non-board members in the community can be appointed to board committees. The feeling is 

there may be people out there with expertise to help board committees. The suggestion to add someone 

must originate from the board committee member. Mr. Kelsey provided a summary of the framework 

and guidelines. He invited comments from others. Ms. Richardson said she thinks it will be beneficial 

and is well done. Dr. Sowada said one of the thoughts behind this is it is a way to encourage people to 

consider being a future board member as well as utilize outside expertise to deepen the bench.  

 

Board Charter: Governance Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the current charter provides that committee members consist of the Board President and 

one board member. Dr. Sowada suggested she would like to delegate that because she has been on the 

Governance Committee since 2018. She felt it was time to have others serve on that committee. The 

motion to accept the charter revision as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Judge James. 

Motion carried.  

 

CY24 Infection Control Plan 

 

Dr. Sowada noted we have a calendar year plan for review. She said the Hospital does well from an 

infection control standpoint. She said it was a very thorough plan and invited questions. Mr. Kelsey 

asked if there were changes from the previous year and, if there were, he requests an explanation 

provided at the next meeting.  

 

Proposed FY25 Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Priorities 

 

Dr. Sowada said the changes are minor and highlighted in the document in the packet. The motion to 

approve proposed FY25 priorities as presented was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion 

carried.  

 

Critical Access Hospital “Patient Care” Policies 

 

Dr. Sowada said there are many things related to policies involved in the change to critical access status. 

Patient care policies are required to be approved by the Board. Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing 

Officer, and Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, have been working with Dr. Crofts on the 

policy updates. The plan is to bring them forward as consent agenda items. Dr. Quickenden said we have 

asked The Joint Commission if everything has to be approved before the survey in the fall. We have 

learned they do not, we only need the procedure in place. Dr. Crofts said we hope the big questions are 

resolved at the Medical Executive Committee level before presentation to the Board for approval. Mr. 

Rood asked for information on how the updates are communicated to the staff. Dr. Quickenden said 

everything with critical access requires review at least every two years if not designated more frequently, 

so we will continually work on them and communicate about them. Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. 

Quickenden, Dr. Clevenger, and Dr. Crofts for their hard work on this process and the updates. 

 

  

6/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

Ms. Richardson wished everyone a Happy Fiscal New Year! She said we are looking forward to FY25. 

Ms. Richardson welcomed new members to her Leadership Team: Ms. Stephanie Mlinar, Director of 

Quality; Dr. Brendan Gemelli, Director of Pharmacy; Ms. Kayla Mannikko, Executive Director of the 

Foundation; Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities. Ms. Richardson provided an update on person-

centered care culture initiatives. She said Dr. Quickenden and Dr. Clevenger have been developing 

reports to share strategic plan updates with the Board. Ms. Richardson said Ms. Tami Love, Chief 

Financial Officer, has been working with the State on our critical access status. The build-out in Cerner 

begins in July and will be completed by the end of September. We plan to have our provisional license 

effective October 1, 2024. We will have a survey by the state licensing authority as well as The Joint 

Commission in the fall. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone involved in this process. Ms. Richardson said 

the master plan preliminary report was reviewed by the Building and Grounds Committee. Ms. 

Richardson said the interim audit went very well and thanked Ms. Love and her team for their work. The 

auditors were very complimentary of the detailed work. The onsite audit will be conducted the week of 

August 12. Ms. Richardson attended the Wyoming Hospital Association Board Retreat and will attend 

the American Hospital Association Leadership Conference in July. Ms. Richardson reviewed her report 

to the Board of County Commissioners in June and said it is available in the board portal. Dr. Sowada 

asked Ms. Richardson to provide an update on the CMS star rating. Ms. Richardson said we were 

preliminarily upgraded from three stars to four stars. She said the rating is based on quality measures 

and patient satisfaction scores. She said we are very proud of the staff. Dr. Sowada said it is huge to hear 

all of the accomplishments over a year’s time and thanked everyone for all the work they are doing.  

PRESIDENT OF THE MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

Dr. Crofts said policies and procedures work continues. She said the Bylaws Committee is reviewing the 

rules and regulations in the bylaws. Dr. Sowada asked for a tentative meeting date sometime in August 

for bylaws review. Dr. Crofts said there is a piece in there about non-physician providers (NPP). She 

said we don’t really want to make any changes until what they have proposed as of now is approved.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Compliance Committee 

Dr. Sowada said they did not meet. 

Governance Committee 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

Quality Committee 

Dr. Sowada said there is a stoplight report that will be discussed in executive session because quality is 

considered confidential by statute. She said other data for review is available in the meeting packet and 

board portal. 

Human Resources Committee 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report.  

  

7/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

Mr. Kelsey said the month of May was good financially for the Hospital. He said we had an extremely 

good year financially. Mr. Kelsey said we have some continued issues with Medicare and Medicaid 

aging of accounts. He said we are training a new employee and we have continued issues with Cerner. 

Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Richardson to confirm we are dealing with the Cerner issues and Ms. Richardson 

assured her we are addressing the concerns. Mr. Kelsey said we have seen a substantial increase in 

contract FTEs in May. He said Dr. Clevenger addressed the increase during the Finance and Audit 

Committee meeting. Mr. Kelsey said we have increased our cash on hand, which is really positive and 

reflective of the good work the staff has done. Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient 

Financial Services, gave a report to the Committee on the good work of the Patient Navigators.    

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net bad debt and recoveries as presented of $2,027,818.78 was 

made by Mr. Kelsey, second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

Foundation Board 

Mr. Rood said he was unable to attend the June meeting and will get an update from the new Executive 

Director at the next meeting. 

Executive Oversight & Compensation Committee 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report at this time. 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report at this time. 

 

Buildings & Ground Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the Chair Report and minutes are in the packet. He said he thinks the master plan process 

and report are excellent. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks the Board will be quite pleased with their work and 

the information we will have to move forward. Mr. Rood agreed and said he thought the team went after 

some creative solutions. Mr. Kelsey said it will help us decide how to move forward. Ms. Richardson 

agreed the company did an excellent job. She said she thinks we will need to prioritize and decide how 

to fund the plans. She agreed it is a great start. 

 

GOOD OF ORDER 

Commissioner Jones complimented Dr. Sowada on her reappointment to the Board. He thanked her for 

volunteering to serve another term. He said he feels the Hospital Board is one of the most important 

boards in Sweetwater County. Commissioner Jones said he feels so many good things have happened in 

the last 8 years. Dr. Sowada said it is a privilege to serve and work with everyone on the Board. She 

thanked the Commissioners for having faith in her.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:16 p.m. to discuss contracts, quality, legal updates, and 

items covered by statute was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

  

8/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

The motion to leave the executive session and return to the regular session at 4:30 p.m. was made by Mr. 

Rood; second by Mr. Kesley. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action was 

taken.  

 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as discussed in executive 

session was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical Privileges 

and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from June 18, 2024 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Steve Shiue, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Kent Davis, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Rene Hinkle, OB/GYN 

 Dr. John Ryan, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Kathryn Krulisky, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

 Dr. Jory Liang, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

 Dr. Mary Alfidi, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Jay Tank, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Anil Aleti, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Alicia Gray, Hospitalist 

 

The motion to approve the FY25 quality measures as reviewed in executive session was made by Judge 

James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the physician contract discussed in executive session and authorize the CEO to 

sign was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:31 p.m.  

      

    

  ___________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

9/80



Approval Process for a Community Member to be Appointed to a 
Board Committee 

 

DRAFT 
 

        Board of Trustees 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 
The By-Laws of the Board of Trustees provide an option for a community member to be 
appointed to a committee of the Board of Trustees (Board). The purpose of this policy is to 
provide requirements and guidelines associated with said appointment. The Board believes that 
the appointment of a community member to a committee may provide additional expertise 
and/or an outside perspective regarding the workings of the committee. 
 

TEXT: 
Requirements and Guidelines: 

 The initial impetus and suggestion for a community member to serve on a committee of 
the Board must originate from the applicable committee via a majority vote of the 
committee. 

 Nominations for a community member to serve may come from any member of the 
applicable committee or from any member of the Board. Nominations should be e-
mailed to the current chair of the committee, the Board President, and CEO together 
with a narrative stating why this community member would be a valuable addition to 
the committee. 

 The chair of the committee shall provide all voting committee members of the 
committee the names of nominees, if any, together with the supporting narrative 
provided by the nominator. The chair of the committee may, at his/her discretion, ask 
the nominee to submit a brief statement to the chair of the committee stating why 
he/she would like to be considered for this appointment. 

 The committee shall vote whether or not to recommend any of the nominees for 
appointment. The recommended nominee shall become the initial preferred nominee, 
subject to interview requirements stated below. 

 In an effort to ensure that there is no apparent conflict of interest or other concern 
associated with the preferred nominee, the preferred nominee shall be interviewed by 
the Board President and the Chief Executive Officer. The Board President, upon 
conclusion of the interviews, shall notify the committee chair of the CEO’s and the 
Presidents recommendation.  

 The appointment to the Board committee shall be made in the same manner as other 
appointments to Board committees. 

 The term of appointment is for one fiscal year. If appointed after the annual Board 
meeting in July, the term shall end on the subsequent June 30th. The community 

10/80



member may be re-appointed at the next annual meeting in July for a one-year term. 
The community member should not serve more than three full one year terms. The 
community member shall be a non-voting member of the committee. 

 Community committee members are not eligible to participate in executive sessions of 
Board committees. 

 Community committee members shall sign the Hospital’s conflict of interest statement.. 
 At the discretion of the committee, the voting members of the committee, in executive 

session, may discuss the appointment if warranted due to perceived issues with the 
community member. The committee may recommend to the Board President the 
termination of the appointment at any time during the term of appointment. The Board 
President, in consultation with the committee chair, shall then take appropriate action. 

 
 

 

 

11/80



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
Board Meeting Date:  August 7, 2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
New Business: Infection Prevention Plan for 2024, 2nd reading. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ___X___ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

The Infection Prevention Plan is brought to the Board of Trustees on an annual 
basis per Joint Commission requirements as defined by Memorial Hospitals 
policie(s). The Infection Prevention Plan is reviewed and approved by the Board.  

  
Board Committee Action: 
 
The Infection Prevention Committee and Medical Executive Committee approved 
the Plan. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _  ____ For Review Only 
 ___X__ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___NA____ In House Comments: 
 ___NA____ Board Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
 
Present to the Board for second reading and action on August 7. 

12/80



INFECTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR CY 2024 

(Based on organization’s strategic plan, risk assessment and external requirements) 

1 

Hand Hygiene 

Risk score 33% 
GOAL: 
Hand Hygiene 
compliance rates to 
increase by 5% for 
each department, with 
a house wide 
compliance rate 
increase of 8% by 
December 31, 2024 

Number of correct 
observances divided by 
number of total 
observances 

• Conduct unit
audits at least
once weekly,
feedback data to
unit leadership,
review with staff

• Provide unit education
on hand hygiene,
fingernails, approved
lotions

• Report HH
performance
monthly to ICC
and other
committees as
appropriate

• Front Line Staff
• Leadership team
• Clinical coordinators,

supervisors 
• Environment

Services director
• Director of Infection

Prevention and CNO
• Infection Prevention
• ICC

Transmission- 
based 
Precautions 

Risk Score 33% 

GOAL: 
Zero Hospital Acquired 
Infection related to 
cross contamination 

Zero infections related to 
cross contamination 
emphasis on MRSA, CDI 

• Educate
departments on
their roles in the
fight against HAI’s

• Work with pharmacy
team/ antibiotic
stewardship.

• Work with physician
team to identify
potential HAI
occurrences

• Round on Isolation
• Round on PPE

use
• Validation of

education on
NetLearning
transcripts

• Front Line staff
• Clinical leadership
• Clinical coordinators,

supervisors
• Infection Prevention
• Pharmacy
• Physicians

Contaminated 
Instruments/ 
Equipment 
to Include: 

High level 
disinfection 
and/or 
sterilization 

Risk Score 15% 

GOAL: 
Zero tolerance for 
improper reprocessing 
of invasive 
instruments/equipment 
(i.e. critical or semi- 
critical devices 
requiring sterilization 
and/or high-level 
disinfection) 

Standardized protocols for 
sterilization and high- 
level disinfection followed 
throughout facility 

Maintain use of 
procedural & unit- based 
pre-soaking of 
instruments every time 
Rounding/surveillance of 1 
area each month 100% 
compliance with goal 

• Competency
assessment of staff
who perform
reprocessing upon hire
and annually

• Documentation in logs
(per policy) on cycle
parameters, biological
testing, solution
concentration, and
temperature

• Audit unit pre- 
soaking/spraying of
items with a solution
per IFU prior to arrival
in SP

• Departmental
monthly monitoring
of quality control

• Process monitored
as part of mock
surveys/EOC
rounds.

• Joint SP/Infection
Prevention site
visits to locations
that reprocess

• Departmental
managers

• SP
• IP
• ICC
• Front Line staff

13/80



INFECTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR CY 2024 

(Based on organization’s strategic plan, risk assessment and external requirements) 

2 

Contaminated 
Equipment 

Low Level 
Disinfection 

Risk Score 20% 

GOAL: Provide safe 
and sanitary equipment 
and environment 

Environment of Care 
results >80% 
compliance with 
monitoring and 
Surveillance. 
1 department each 
month 

• Written clarification of
cleaning protocols

• Education of staff
• Standardization of cleaning

products
• Education of proper contact

times for disinfectants

• Environment of
Care results

• Rounding reports

• EVS
• Departmental

managers
• Biomedical

Engineering
• IP
• Unit/department staff
• ICC

Employee 
Participation 

Fit test 
Annually 

Risk Score 19% 

Goal: 
Have 100% of 
employees participate 
in annual fit test 

Employee health to 
report at IP monthly 
totals 

Each employee is 
scheduled annually for 
fit test in birth month. 
100 % of employees 
within their month 

• Each employee is
responsible for scheduling
fit test with employee
health during their birthday
month.

• This can be
included in the
yearly evaluations
done by both
director and
employee

• For physicians it
can be used as
part of their OPPE
evaluation

• Employee
• Employee Health

Approved Infection Prevention Committee: 02/29/2024 
Approved MEC:  03/26/2024
MHSC Board:  

14/80



15/80



Separator Page

Capital Expenditure FY25 1 Luminos Agile Max X Ray System August 2024

16/80



17/80



18/80



19/80



20/80



21/80



22/80



23/80



24/80



25/80



26/80



27/80



28/80



29/80



Separator Page

Capital Expenditure FY25 2 YSIO XPREE Digital X Ray System August 2024

30/80



31/80



32/80



33/80



34/80



35/80



36/80



37/80



38/80



39/80



40/80



41/80



42/80



43/80



44/80



45/80



Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 
Between Owner and Construction Manager 

August 1, 2024 

Pursuant to Paragraph 3.2 of the Agreement, dated November 3, 2023, Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater 
County (Owner) and Groathouse Construction, Inc. (Construction Manager) for the Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County Laboratory Renovation & Addition, Rock Springs, WY (the Project); the Owner and 
Construction Manager establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time for the Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County Imaging Suite Renovation – Phase II as set forth below. 

ARTICLE 1 - GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

The Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the Work, including the estimated 
Cost of the Work as defined in Article 7 and Construction Manager’s Fee as defined in Article 6, is One 
Million, One Hundred Eighty-Four Thousand, One Hundred Thirty-Seven Dollars ($1,184,137). 

This Price is for performance of the Work in accordance with the following listed Contract Documents and 
items included with this proposal: 

Drawings - Plan One/Architects, Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Imaging Suite 
Renovation – Phase II, Rock Springs, WY, 90% Review Drawings dated June 28, 2024.   

GMP Estimate -  GMP Estimate prepared by Groathouse Construction, Inc. dated July 29, 2024.  Bid 
Package Summary Page 1 and Detailed Bid Package Pages 1 through 8.  

Clarifications – MHSC Imaging Suite Renovation – Phase II GMP Clarifications dated July 29, 2024. 

Allowance Items (material & labor) included in GMP  - 

1—Ceiling Patching = Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) 
2—Wall Patching = Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) 
3—Miscellaneous Patching = Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) 
4—X-Ray Equipment Coordination = Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) 
5—Duct Board Demolition = Twenty-One Thousand Dollars ($21,000.00) 

ARTICLE 2 - CONTRACT TIME 
The date of Substantial Completion for the Project established by the Amendment is: 

1. August 1, 2025*

ARTICLE 3 - OTHER CONDITIONS 

The GMP includes a contingency in the amount of $140,990.  This contingency is for the Construction 
Manager’s exclusive use to cover costs arising under Subparagraph 3.2.4 of the Agreement and other costs 
which are properly reimbursable as Cost of the Work but not the basis for a Change Order. 

The Amendment must be executed by all parties by August 7, 2024 or it will automatically expire. 

Notwithstanding the requirements and obligations set forth in the Contract Documents, the Agreement, 
and this Amendment, Construction Manager and its surety shall not be held liable for any impacts, delays, 
labor overruns, material overruns and/or cost overruns related to the Work stemming from the current 
Coronavirus Pandemic or its aftermath.  Construction Manager shall be entitled to an extension of the 
contract time and an equitable adjustment of the Contract Price, due to labor shortages, material 
escalation, or otherwise, for the performance of the Work due to events and conditions beyond 

46/80



Construction Manager’s control, including the impacts from the Coronavirus Pandemic.  Construction 
Manager shall notify the Owner should any of the above events occur. 

GROATHOUSE CONSTRUCTION, INC. Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
(Construction Manager) (Owner) 

BY: _______________________ BY: _______________________ 
Fred A. Bronnenberg, CEO Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Date: _______________________ 

Attest: _______________________ Attest: _______________________ 

47/80



Bid Package Summary
MHSC Medical Imaging Renovation - Phase II Page 1

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Estimate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages Labor Amount
Material
Amount

Sub Amount Other Amount Total Amount

 0 Gen Requirements 50,178 4,887 23,682 7,600 86,347

 0.2 Allowances 66,000 66,000

 1 General Construct 71,031 45,959 3,340 120,330

 7A Gypsum Board 53,000 53,000

 7C Acoustic Ceiling 30,000 30,000

 9 Doors & Hardware 27,585 27,585

10 Alum Door & Wndws 6,810 6,810

12 Painting 15,552 15,552

13C Carpet & Rslnt 71,292 71,292

14A Arch Casework 32,858 32,858

18 Mechanical 279,000 279,000

18C Fire Protection 29,260 29,260

19A Electrical 121,902 121,902

Estimate Totals

Description Amount Totals Hours Rate
Labor 121,208 2,430.138 hrs

Material 78,431
Subcontract 663,356

Other 76,940
939,935 939,935

Contingency 140,990 15.000 %
Sales / Use Tax 2,210
General Liability 4,700 0.500 %

Builder's Risk 4,144 0.350 %
Building Permit 9,561

Plan Check Fee 6,215 65.000 %
CM/GC Bonds 9,355

177,175 1,117,110
CM Fee 67,027 6.000 %

67,027 1,184,137
Total 1,184,137

48/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 1

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

 0 Gen
Requirements

11000.00 GENERAL

REQUIREMENTS
Postage/UPS 2.00 mo - - - 100 100

Safety Equipment 2.00 mo - - - 800 800

Safety Equipment - Labor 2.00 mo 1,300 - - - 1,300

HEPA Negative Air

Machines

1.00 ea - 3,500 - - 3,500

HEPA Filters 1.00 ea - 212 - - 212 Price is per Case.

Dust Partitions & Doors 1.00 ls 20,000 - 20,000

HEPA Vacuum/Filters 1.00 ea - - - 3,000 3,000 This will cover 17,500 CF Volume.

Misc Infection Control

Supplies

1.00 ls - 1,500 - 1,500 This includes sticky mats, boots, etc.

Infection Control Monitoring 2.00 mo 4,573 - - - 4,573 5 hours per week

Project Closeout 40.00 hr 3,062 - - - 3,062

Employee Lodging 1.00 ls - - - 1,800 1,800 1 apartment

Scheduling 20.00 hr 1,687 - - - 1,687

Preconstruction 1.00 ls 6,000 - - - 6,000

Current Cleanup (Large

Project)

2.00 mo 15,700 800 - - 16,500

Haul Dumpster 2.00 mo - - - 1,400 1,400 Assuming 30 cy dumpster and an

average of 2 hauls per month. 

Prices from Wyoming Waste - 15 cy

$198/haul, 30 cy $230/haul, Delivery

fee of $120, Rental Fee of $180/mo,

10.3% Fuel Surcharge on hauls.  No

landfill fee - need to sort metal.

Final Cleanup 3,357.00 sf - - 2,182 - 2,182

Punchlist 1.25 wk 13,637 63 - - 13,700

Warranty 1.25 wk 4,218 313 - - 4,531

Unloading Materials 1.00 ls - - - 500 500

  GENERAL

REQUIREMENTS

50,178 4,887 23,682 7,600 86,347

 0 Gen
Requirements

50,178 4,887 23,682 7,600 86,347

 0.2 Allowances
11000.00 GENERAL

REQUIREMENTS
Allowance 1 - Ceiling

Patching

1.00 ls - - - 10,000 10,000

Allowance 2 - Wall Patching 1.00 ls - - - 10,000 10,000

49/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 2

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

11000.00 GENERAL

REQUIREMENTS
Allowance 3 - Misc Patching 1.00 ls - - - 5,000 5,000

Allowance 4 - X-Ray

Equipment Coordination

1.00 ls - - - 20,000 20,000 includes demo, patching floors, etc.

Allowance 5 - Duct Board

Demolition

1.00 ls - - - 21,000 21,000

  GENERAL

REQUIREMENTS

66,000 66,000

 0.2 Allowances 66,000 66,000

 1 General
Construct

20000.00 EXISTING CONDITIONS
Remove 4" Slab on Grade 20.00 sf 494 230 - - 724

Saw Concrete Floors (per

1" depth)

72.00 lf 402 166 - - 568

Remove Alum./HM Door &

Frame

7.00 ea 1,728 40 - - 1,768

Remove Drywall Partition 1,668.00 sf 3,431 96 - - 3,527

Remove Acoustical Ceiling 1,095.00 sf 676 63 - - 739

Remove & Replace

Acoustical Ceiling?? - C1

2,012.00 sf 4,966 116 - - 5,082

Remove Sheet Vinyl 3,336.00 sf 8,234 3,838 - - 12,072

Misc. Demo (labor and

material)

95.00 hr 11,724 - - 11,724 Casework, specialties, etc.

  EXISTING

CONDITIONS

31,653 4,549 36,202

60000.00 WOOD & PLASTICS
Misc. Fasteners 3,336.00 sf - 576 - - 576

Blocking/Backing 1.00 ls 4,936 4,027 - - 8,963

Subcontractor Sales/Use

Tax

1.00 ls - - - 2,765 2,765

Tool Trailer 2.00 mo - - - 391 391

Project Fuel - Jobsite Truck 2.00 mo - - - 184 184

Tools and Accessories

(Purchase)

2.00 mo - 2,761 - - 2,761

Equipment 2.00 mo - 1,151 - - 1,151

Fuel & Oil

(Cranes/Forklifts,Compress

ors)

2.00 mo - 2,412 - - 2,412

Lull/Forklift 2.00 mo - 6,903 - - 6,903

  WOOD & PLASTICS 4,936 17,829 3,340 26,105

80000.00 OPENINGS
Steel Frame Labor 6.00 ea 740 - - - 740

50/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 3

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

80000.00 OPENINGS
Wood Hospital Door Labor 6.00 ea 740 - - - 740

Ceiling/Wall Access Door

Material 2' x 3'

1.00 ea - 460 - - 460

Window Steel Frame Labor 3.00 ea 740 - - - 740

Hospital Door Hardware

Labor

6.00 ea 3,702 - - - 3,702

  OPENINGS 5,924 460 6,384

90000.00 FINISHES
Wall Covering 2,816.00 sf 21,720 1,620 - - 23,340

SD INC. 1.00 ls - - - - 0
Wall Covering 2,816.00 sf - 17,819 - - 17,819

  FINISHES 21,720 19,439 41,159

100000.00 SPECIALTIES
Interior Signs Labor 9.00 ea 278 - - - 278

SD INC 1.00 ls - - - - 0
Interior Sign Material 4.00 ea - 920 - - 920

Corner Protection Labor 14.00 ea 288 - - - 288

Corner Protection Material 14.00 ea - 1,611 - - 1,611

Misc. Toilet Access. Labor 21.00 ea 1,296 - - - 1,296

SD INC 1.00 ls - - - - 0
Misc. Toilet Access. Material 10.00 ea - 1,151 - - 1,151

Reinstall Specialties Labor 80.00 hr 4,936 - - - 4,936

  SPECIALTIES 6,798 3,682 10,479

 1 General
Construct

71,031 45,959 3,340 120,330

 7A Gypsum Board
90000.00 FINISHES

PARSON DRYWALL 1.00 LS - - 53,000 - 53,000

Prep Walls for New Finishes 5,400.00 sf - - * - 0

Interior Partitions 1,320.00 sf - - * - 0

Bulkhead Patching 1.00 ls - - * - 0 Note 3/Sheet A11.1

Suspended Gypsum

Ceilings

57.00 sf - - * - 0

  FINISHES 53,000 53,000

 7A Gypsum Board 53,000 53,000

 7C Acoustic
Ceiling

90000.00 FINISHES
PARSON DRYWALL 1.00 LS - - 30,000 - 30,000

C6 - Acoustical Ceiling 2x2 295.00 sf - - * - 0

51/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 4

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

90000.00 FINISHES
C8 - Acoustical Ceiling Tile

- Antimicrobial

720.00 sf - - * - 0

Seismic Bracing @ Ceilings 720.00 sf - - * - 0

  FINISHES 30,000 30,000

 7C Acoustic
Ceiling

30,000 30,000

 9 Doors &
Hardware

80000.00 OPENINGS
COLORADO DOORWAYS 1.00 LS - 27,585 - 27,585

Steel Frame Material 2.00 ea - - * - 0

Lead Lined Steel Frame

Material

6.00 ea - - * - 0

Wood Hospital Door

Material

2.00 ea - - * - 0

Lead Lined Door Material 4.00 ea - - * - 0

Window Steel Frame

Material

3.00 ea - - * - 0

Rated Door Hardware

Material

6.00 ea - - * - 0

  OPENINGS 27,585 27,585

 9 Doors &
Hardware

27,585 27,585

10 Alum Door &
Wndws

80000.00 OPENINGS

DJ'S GLASS PLUS 1.00 LS - - -
GL-1 Clear Laminated Glass 12.00 sf - - 1,200 - 1,200

Decorative Film @ GL-2 12.00 sf - - 360 - 360

GL-2 Lead Lined Glass 21.00 sf - - 5,250 - 5,250

  OPENINGS 6,810 6,810

10 Alum Door &
Wndws

6,810 6,810

12 Painting
70000.00 THERMAL &

MOISTURE
NICHOLLS BROTHERS

PAINTING

1.00 LS - - 15,552 - 15,552

Interior Joint Sealants 3,336.00 sf - - * - 0

52/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 5

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

  THERMAL &

MOISTURE

15,552 15,552

90000.00 FINISHES
Paint Drywall (walls) 8,040.00 sf - - * - 0

Paint Drywall (ceilings) 80.00 sf - - * - 0

C5 - Epoxy Drywall

(ceilings)

231.00 sf - - * - 0

Paint Frame 6.00 ea - - * - 0

12 Painting 15,552 15,552

13C Carpet & Rslnt
90000.00 FINISHES

SURFACES INC. 1.00 ls - - 71,292 - 71,292

Porcelain Ceramic Wall 638.00 sf - - * - 0

F6.1 - Porcelain Ceramic

Floor

17.00 sf - - * - 0

F8 - Sheet Vinyl 2,687.00 sf - - * - 0

F10 - Sheet Vinyl 698.00 sf - - * - 0

Cove Base 954.00 lf - - * - 0

  FINISHES 71,292 71,292

13C Carpet & Rslnt 71,292 71,292

14A Arch
Casework

120000.00 FURNISHINGS
JBD, INC. 1.00 LS - - 32,858 - 32,858

Base Cabinet PLAM w/SS

Countertop

17.00 lf - - * - 0

Wall Cabinets PLAM 35.00 lf - - * - 0

Solid Surface Countertop 160.00 sf - - * - 0

  FURNISHINGS 32,858 32,858

14A Arch
Casework

32,858 32,858

18 Mechanical
220000.00 PLUMBING

VAUGHN'S PLUMBING &

HEATING

1.00 LS - - 279,000 - 279,000

Plumbing & HVAC Complete 1.00 ls - - * - 0

  PLUMBING 279,000 279,000

18 Mechanical 279,000 279,000

18C Fire Protection
210000.00 FIRE SUPPRESSION

RAPID FIRE PROTECTION 1.00 LS - - 29,260 - 29,260

Fire Protection 3,336.00 sf - - * - 0

53/80



Detailed Bid Package
MHSC Medical Imaging Suite Renovation - Phase II Page 6

Groathouse Construction, Inc. GMP Esitmate (90% Documents) July 29, 2024

Bid Packages CSI Division Description
Takeoff
Quantity

Labor
Amount

Material
Amount

Sub Amount
Other

Amount
Total

Amount
Notes

  FIRE SUPPRESSION 29,260 29,260

18C Fire Protection 29,260 29,260

19A Electrical
260000.00 ELECTRICAL

WYOELECTRIC INC. 1.00 LS - - * - 0

Electrical Complete 3,336.00 sf - - 121,902 - 121,902

  ELECTRICAL 121,902 121,902

19A Electrical 121,902 121,902

Estimate Totals

Description Amount Totals Hours Rate
Labor 121,208 2,430.138 hrs

Material 78,431
Subcontract 663,356

Other 76,940
939,935 939,935

Contingency 140,990 15.000 %
Sales / Use Tax 2,210
General Liability 4,700 0.500 %

Builder's Risk 4,144 0.350 %
Building Permit 9,561

Plan Check Fee 6,215 65.000 %
CM/GC Bonds 9,355

177,175 1,117,110
CM Fee 67,027 6.000 %

67,027 1,184,137
Total 1,184,137

54/80



MHSC Imaging Suite Renovation – Phase II 
GMP Clarifications 

July 29, 2024 

ATTACHMENT A 

 
1. Pricing is based on Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Imaging Suite Renovation – Phase II 

Drawings dated June 28, 2024, issued by Plan One/Architects.  A project manual specific to this 
Imaging Suite Renovation was not issued at this time.  The Project Manual for the Laboratory 
Expansion and Renovation, Job No. 2313, dated March 29, 2024 was used in pricing where 
applicable to this project. 
 

2. Shielding Reports issued by Medical Physic Consultants, Inc., dated July 5, 2024 are included in 
the pricing documents. 

 
3. Curries is the manufacturer used for lead lined hollow metal frames. 

 
4. The door schedule on Sheet A601 is revised per Attachment B. 

 
5. No Door Hardware Schedule was provided at the time of pricing.  See Attachment C proposed 

Door Hardware Schedule. 
 

6. Ceilings in Rooms B115, B116, B117, are priced as 24”x24” Anti-Microbial, Scrubbable Acoustical 
Panels.  New and repaired Unistrut Frame Systems are included per Sheets A11.1 and S1.1.  
Halcyon Healthcare Acoustical Panels are not included in the estimate. 

 
7. New flooring is based on the Revised Sheet A2.2, Overall Floor Finish Plan, dated July 12, 2024.  

See Attachment D. 
 

8. All casework is priced as plastic laminate.  Countertops are solid surface. 
 

9. See Attachment E for revised Plumbing Fixtures. 
 

55/80



MHSC Imaging Suite Renovation – Phase II 
Revised Door Schedule 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

 

56/80



ATTACHMENT C
57/80



ATTACHMENT C
58/80



ATTACHMENT D
59/80



2 © 2022 AS America Inc.
spec_3641.001_FW_EL_RH_Flushometer 9/22

MEETS THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT GUIDELINES 
AND ANSI A117.1 REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCESSIBLE AND USABLE 
BUILDING FACILITIES - CHECK LOCAL CODES.

When installed so top of seat is 432 to 483mm (17" to 19") from the
finished floor.

Right Width™ FloWise® Elongated 
Right Height® Flushometer Toilet with Seat

VITREOUS CHINA

Right Width™ FloWise® Elongated 
Right Height® Flushometer Toilet with Seat

• Floor mount elongated flushometer toilet with seat
• Vitreous china
• Tested to support static load of 2,000 lbs.(908 kg)
•  High Efficiency, Low Consumption. Operates in the

range of 1.28 gpf to 1.6 gpf (4.9 Lpf to 6.0 Lpf)
•  Meets definition of HET (High Efficiency Toilet) when

used with a 1.28 gpf high efficiency flush valve
• Wider footprint is ideal for retrofit installation
• 16-1/2" rim height for accessible applications
• Elongated, Open Front, Right Width™ seat

(less toilet seat lid) included
• Fully glazed 2" trapway
• 10" or 12" Rough-in
• 1-1/2" inlet spud
• 2 bolt caps

❏ 3641.001 Top spud

System MaP* Score:
•  1,000 grams of miso @ 1.6 gpf or 1.28 gpf when

used with an American Standard flush valve
*  Maximum Performance (MaP) testing performed by IAPMO

R&T Lab. MaP Report conducted by Veritec Consulting, Inc.
and Koeller and Company.

Nominal Dimensions:
718 x 432 x 419mm
(28-1/4" x 17" x 16-1/2")
Recommended working pressure – between
30 psi at valve when flushing and 80 psi static

Fixture and Seat only, flush valve by others
Compliance Certifications -
Meets or Exceeds the Following Specifications:
• ASME A112.19.2 / CSA B45.1 for Vitreous

China Fixtures

NOTES:
THIS TOILET IS DESIGNED TO ROUGH-IN AT A MINIMUM DIMENSION 
OF 254MM (10") FROM FINISHED WALL TO C/L OF OUTLET.
TO COMPLY WITH AREA CODE GOVERNING THE HEIGHT OF VACUUM 
BREAKER ON FLUSH VALVE, THE PLUMBER MUST VERIFY  
DIMENSIONS SHOWN FOR SUPPLY ROUGHING.
FLUSH VALVE NOT INCLUDED AND MUST BE ORDERED SEPARATELY.

IMPORTANT:  Dimensions of fixtures are nominal and may vary within 
the range of tolerances established by ANSI Standard A112.19.2. These 
measurements are subject to change or cancellation. No responsibility is 
assumed for use of superseded or voided pages.

BARRIER FREE

To Be Specified:
❏ Color:  ❏  White
❏ Flushometer Valve:

❏ 1.6 gpf:
❏  Sensor-Operated: American Standard

Selectronic® DC Power #6065.161.002
(Top Spud)

❏  Manual: American Standard #6047.161.002
(Top Spud)

❏ 1.28 gpf:
❏  Sensor-Operated: American Standard

Selectronic® DC Power #6065.121.002
(Top Spud)

❏  Manual: American Standard #6047.121.002
(Top Spud)

711mm
(30")
REF.

1-1/2"
(38mm)
SPUD

121mm
(4-3/4")

REF.

304mm
(12")

254mm
(10")

419mm
(16-1/2")

470mm
(18-1/2")

89mm
(3-1/2")

16mm
(5/8")

718mm
(28-1/4")

432mm
(17")

338mm
(16-3/8")181mm

(7-1/8")13mm
(1/2")

C/L OF SEAT POST
HOLES 140mm (5-1/2") 
CENTERS

FINISHED WALL

FINISHED
FLOOR

C/L OF OUTLET

1" N.P.T. OR 1" C.W.T. SUPPLY
TO FLUSH VALVE

ADA 
COMPLIANT

WATER 
EFFICIENT

When used with
1.1 or 1.28 gpf 
toilet flush valves

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
60/80

DerekClery
Cloud



Features
• Elongated bowl.
• Bedpan lugs.
• Antimicrobial finish inhibits the growth of mold-, mildew-, stain-,

and odor-causing bacteria on the fixture surface.
• 1-1/2" (38 mm) top spud.
• 10" x 7" (254 mm x 178 mm) water surface.
• 2-1/8" (54 mm) fully-glazed trapway.
• 10" or 12" (254 or 305 mm) rough-in.
• 1.1 gpf (4.2 lpf), 1.28 (4.8 lpf) or 1.6 gpf (6.0 lpf) depending on

flushometer specified.
• Supports static load of 2,500 lbs.

Material

CSA B651 OBC

• Vitreous china.

Technology
• Designed to outperform competitors in bowl cleanliness and

plug resistance.
Codes/Standards• Maximum waste removal.
ASME A112.19.2/CSA B45.1• Engineered for toilet seat cover removal.
DOE - Energy Policy Act 1992• Excellent bowl rinse. EPA WaterSense®

• Engineered to flush effectively in buildings with low supply
pressure and flow.

California Energy Commission (CEC)
ADA

Installation ICC/ANSI A117.1
CSA B651• 26-1/8" L x 14-5/8" W x 16-5/8" H.
OBC• Replaces Highcrest K-4302-L, Highcliff K-4368-L and Highline

K-4405-L. Height and footprint may vary.
KOHLER® One-Year Limited Warranty• Seat not included.
See website for detailed warranty information.

Recommended Products/Accessories
K-23726 Drain treatment

Available Colors/FinishesIncluded Components
Additional Components:

Bolt cap accessory pack 
Spud 

Color tiles intended for reference only.

DescriptionCodeColor

White0

1-800-4KOHLER (1-800-456-4537)
Kohler Co. reserves the right to make revisions without notice to product specifications.
For the most current Specification Sheet, go to www.kohler.com.
5-6-2020 11:39 - US/CA

Highcliff™ Ultra
Top spud antimicrobial flushometer bowl w/ bedpan lugs

K-96057-SSL

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
61/80

DerekClery
Cloud



 
  

REVISED: 07/01/22  

Bariatric On-Floor Toilet
ADA Compliant
Fixture is arranged to be installed on a finished 
wall optionally from the front or rear. Unit is 
fabricated of 14 gage, type 304 stainless steel and 
is seamless welded construction. Fixture (less -
HSBJ Hinged Seat option) shall withstand loads up 
to 2,000 lbs. with no measurable deflection and 
loads up to 5,000 lbs. with no permanent damage. 

®Optional -HSBJ Big John  Hinged Toilet Seat is 
rated at 1,200 lbs. Fixture exterior and Bowl 
interior has a satin finish. Optional -EG Enviro-
Glaze color finishes are available. Housing includes 
side Access Panels to facilitate installation of 
fixture and Hinged Seat by others. Toilet complies 
with ADA requirements for accessibility. 
Compliance is subject to the interpretation and 
requirements of the local code authority.

Toilet is optionally available in both Floor Outlet or 
Wall Outlet with elongated Bowl and an overall 
depth of 29". Fixtures are manufactured to comply 
with ASME A112.19.3 and CSA B45.4 standards. 
Toilet requires a minimum of 25 PSI flow pressure 
and uses a minimum water consumption of 1.28 
GPF. Trap will pass a 2-1/8" ball and is fully 
enclosed with a minimum 3-1/2" seal.

Wall Outlet configurations with Front Mounting   
(-FM) include a wall waste outlet with a 7-1/2" Dia. 
Recessed Gasket Flange. Rear Mount (-RM) 
fixtures include a 2-3/8" Dia. plain end Toilet 
Waste that extends 3" beyond back of fixture.

Floor Outlet configurations include a floor waste 
outlet with a 7-1/2" Dia. Recessed Gasket Flange 
for both Front (-FM) and Rear (-RM) mount 
installations.

Flush Valve supply is additionally available for 
exposed or concealed Flush Valve styles in 1.28 
GPF, 1.6 GPF, or 3.5 GPF and with 1-1/2" NPT 
connection.

GUIDE SPECIFICATION

Provide and install Whitehall Bariatric ADA 
Compliant Toilet (specify model number and 
options). Unit shall conform to ADA requirements. 
Fixture shall be fabricated from 14 gage, type 304 
stainless steel. Construction shall be seamless 
welded and exposed surfaces shall have a satin 
finish. Toilet shall have an elongated Bowl with a 
self-draining Flushing Rim and punching for Seat 
by others. Toilet shall be ASME A112.19.3 and CSA 
B45.4 compliant. Toilet requires a minimum of 25 
PSI flow pressure and uses a minimum water 
consumption of 1.28 GPF. Fully enclosed Toilet Trap 
shall have a minimum 3-1/2" seal that shall pass a 
2-1/8" diameter ball.

Fixture May Show Some Available Options

WH2125-A-W-2-EG-HSBJ

 Bariatric Toilet

Please visit www.whitehallmfg.com
for most current specifications.

Recyclable
Product

Member of 
U.S. Green 
Building 
Council

Complies 
with the

following 
standards:

Water 
Conserving
Product

Bariatric On-Floor Toilet
 ADA Compliant

Model WH2125-A

WH2125-A

  Whitehall Mfg. • P.O. Box 3527 • City of Industry, CA 91744 • (800) 782-7706 • (626) 968-6681 • Fax (626) 855-4862

Division of
®

Acorn Engineering Company

®

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
62/80

DerekClery
Cloud



  

Model Number & Options______________________________________________Quantity___________ 

Company_________________________________________________________Date_______________ 

Contact_____________________________________Title_____________________________________ 

Approval for Manufacturing/Signature_____________________________________________________

SELECTION SUMMARY & APPROVAL FOR MANUFACTURING

Model Number & Options______________________________________________Quantity___________ 

Company_________________________________________________________Date_______________ 

Contact_____________________________________Title_____________________________________ 

Approval for Manufacturing/Signature_____________________________________________________

SELECTION SUMMARY & APPROVAL FOR MANUFACTURINGAll dimensions are nominal and subject to 
manufacturer's change without notice. Whitehall 
assumes no responsibility fo use of void or 
superseded data  © Whitehall Manufacturing, 
Member of Morris Group International. 
Please visit www.whitehallmfg.com for most 
current specifications.

REVISED: 07/01/22

WALL THICKNESS AND TYPE (Must Specify)

Thickness ______________ Type ______________

MODEL NUMBER AND OPTIONS SELECTION

BASE MODEL NUMBER

 WH2125-A  Bariatric Toilet ADA Compliantq

SUPPLY (Must Specify)
-T Top (Exposed)q 

 -W Wall (Concealed)q

FIXTURE MOUNTING AND WASTE (Must Specify)
 -2 On-Floor, Wall Outletq
 -3 On-Floor, Floor Outletq

INSTALLATION (Must Specify)
 -FM Front Mountq
 -RM Rear Mount (Note: Requires Accessible Rear  q

       Plumbing Chase.)

FLUSH VALVE GPF's (Must Specify)
 q -1.28 GPF (HET)                                                   

q -1.6 GPF 
q -3.5 GPF 

FLUSHING INLET LOCATION 
(Must Specify for Wall Supply)

 -LFV q Flush Valve Left
q Flush Valve Right (Shown) -RFV 

FLUSH VALVE OPTIONS (Must Specify)
*SEE WHITEHALL LIGATURE RESISTANT 
SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIAL FOR FLUSH VALVE 
COVERS AND BOXES*                                
q -FV Flush Valve, Mechanical (N/A for ADA) 
q -FVBO Flush Valve by Others 
q - FVH Flush Valve, Hydraulic (Wall Supply)

 FVL Flush Valve, ADA Lever Handle (Wall Supply)q -
 MVCFV Time-Trol Flush Valve (N/A for Top Supply)q -

TOILET SEAT OPTIONS                                              
®q -HSBJ Big John  Hinged Seat 1,200 lbs Rated 

 q -Open Front Less Cover (Shown Below) 
 q -Open Front With Cover 
q -LPFS Less Punch for Hinged Seat 
 17" Flood Rim AFF

TOILET OPTIONS                                                       
q -BL  Bedpan Lugs 
q -FT Flood-Trol (N/A w/ Top Supply)** 
q -FTA Flood-Trol Auto-Reset (N/A w/ Top Supply)** 
q -FTE Flood-Trol Electronic**

(NOTE: **Not available with Top Supply or -FM Front Mount)

q -FVT Flush Thru Wall Connector 
q -PE Plain End Toilet Waste  
 (Standard on Rear Mount Units)
q -TF Transformer, 120VAC to 24VAC (For -MVCFV) 
q -TSC  Toilet Shipping Cover 
q -WO3B  2-3/8” P-Trap w/ 3" Plain End Waste Outlet
 (Rear Mount Only)                                                                  

PRODUCT OPTIONS                         

q -EGE Enviro-Glaze Color Specify:__________           
 Toilet Exterior Only                                              
q -SW Wall Sleeve (-RM Only)                                

q -VAC  AcornVac System 

WH2125-A

  Whitehall Mfg. • P.O. Box 3527 • City of Industry, CA 91744 • (800) 782-7706 • (626) 968-6681 • Fax (626) 855-4862

3

(457)
*17"

(432)

24"
(610)

24"
(610)

23
4"

(70)

*163
4"

(425)
*121

2"

(318)

41
4"

(108)

29"
(737)

29"
(737)

*18"

1
NOTES:

WH2125A-W-2-RM-RFV-HSBJ BLOWOUT JET WH2125A-T-3-FM SIPHON JET

3"
(76)

19"
ADA
(483)

6

3

4 1

4

7

5

OPTIONAL -HSBJ BIG JOHN HINGED SEAT

4.

1.

2

-RFV OFFSET FLUSHING INLET SHOWN FOR 
-W CONCEALED SUPPLY. -LFV IS OPPOSITE 

Ø2-3/8" PLAIN END WASTE OUTLET

LEFT AND RIGHT ACCESS PANELS

OPTIONAL -T TOP SUPPLY SHOWN

PUNCHING FOR HINGED SEAT

Ø7-1/2" GASKET FLANGE WASTE OUTLET

2.

3.

5.

6.

7.

3 5

41
4"

(108)

*FIXTURE INTENDED TO MEET ADA
SEAT HEIGHT  REQUIREMENTS WHEN
OPTIONAL -LPFS IS SELECTED,
FLOOD RIM BECOMES 17" AFF. ADA
REQUIRES A MINIMUM OF 17" TO 19"
MAXIMUM MEASURED FROM THE
TOP OF THE SEAT TO THE FLOOR.

®

WARNING: Cancer and Reproductive Harm - www.P65Warnings.ca.gov

Bariatric Toilet

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
63/80

Derek Clery
Cloud



Willoughby Industries - Healthcare Products                                                                      

                                         

   

H22-11

MADE IN THE U.S.A.

visit our website at www.willoughby-ind.com

BHS-3123

Solid Surface

Willoughby Model No: BHS-3123
(Select from model number and options list on next page)

Floor mounted bariatric lavatory shall accommodate bariatric 
patient and be able to withstand a static downward force of 1,000 
lbs at front edge of lavatory with no permanent physical damage.

® molded cast 

 

apron included.

shall be solid polymer. Optional wood grain exterior panels avail-
able.

Unit shall require no chase for installation and maintenance.

Optional infrared faucet models and thermostatic mixing valves 
are available.

accessibility guidelines.

party carrier should one be desired. (Carrier supplied by others). 

provided by others.

-

thermostatic mixing valve

Use the following Willoughby Model Number: 
BHS-3123-WB1-SS-WL-TMV

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
64/80



H22-12

MODEL NUMBER AND OPTIONS:

MADE IN THE U.S.A.

visit our website at www.willoughby-ind.com

V
E

R
IF

Y
 A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 W
IT

H
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 R
O

U
G

H
-I

N

W
IL

L
O

U
G

H
B

Y
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
 T

H
E

 R
IG

H
T

 T
O

 M
A

K
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 D
E

S
IG

N
 A

N
D

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

 F
O

R
M

A
L

 N
O

T
IC

E
 A

N
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

 IN
C

U
R

R
IN

G
 O

B
L

IG
A

T
IO

N
.

      

  BN   Bone

  SS   Sandstone

  NB   Nocturnal Blue
  RC   Red Coral

  AW Arctic White
  SM Sea Foam
  SN Sanshade (Almond)
  WW White White

  KM Kasei Maple 

  MT    Wall Template

-

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
65/80



800.428.4065 | www.willoughby-ind.com

Designed specifically for bariatric  
patients in healthcare environments.

Floor-mounted pedestal
Constructed of welded Type 304 
stainless steel with eight decorative 
overlay choices.

Aquasurf® durability
Our sanitary solid surface lavatory is 
cast as a one-piece fixture that is easily 
cleaned, maintained, and repaired.

Faucet choices
Choose either wrist handle or infrared 
operation.

ADA
Compliant

 Finally, an aesthetically pleasing lavatory that is consistent

 with FGI’s Guidelines for Design of  Construction of  Health Care Facilities

 and provides a  1,000 lb. weight rating  to properly serve bariatric patients.

Bariatric
Lavatory
BariatricBariatric
LavatoryLavatory

WILLOUGHBY 3123 SERIES

REVIT details available at www.willoughby-ind.com

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
66/80



Willoughby Bariatric Lavatory BHS-3123

Lavatory Deck Color Options Side Panel Color Options

Willoughby Industries, Inc. reserves the right to make changes without notice in design, specifications, and models.  © Willoughby Industries, Inc., All rights reserved. 

Willoughby Industries, Inc.
5105 West 78th Street, Indianapolis, IN 46268
800.428.4065 | fax 317.875.0837
www.willoughby-ind.com

Technical Specification: Model BHS-3123
Standard ....... 31" wide x 22.625" deep x 44.75" tall

REVIT details available at 
www.willoughby-ind.com

Cabinet
•  Constructed of 

solid marine-grade  
high-density 
polyethylene,  
not laminate

•  Optional thermo-foil 
wrapped simulated 
wood grain limits 
exposed seams

Pedestal
•  Constructed of 

welded Type 304 
stainless steel  
for strength  
and rigidity

Controls
•  Wrist handle or infrared 

style faucet available

MADE
IN THE
USA

Arctic White

Sea Foam

SanShade White White

Kasei Maple*

Majestic Walnut*

Amati Walnut*

Sandstone

Grey Granite

Bone

Glacier White

Red Coral

Nocturnal Blue

White GraniteBlack Granite

Sea Green

*Premium finishes

ADA
Compliant

Lavatory Deck
•  Aesthetically pleasing sanitary 

Aquasurf® solid surface material
•  Integrated lavatory bowl
• Increased surface area
• Large 6" deep, D-shaped bowl

1,000 lb. weight rating*

*  Engineered to withstand up to 1000 lb.  
vertical load at the front of the lavatory deck.

MHSC IMAGING SUITE RENOVATION - PHASE II 
PLUMBING FIXTURES

ATTACHMENT E
67/80



68/80



69/80



70/80



71/80



72/80



73/80



74/80



75/80



 

 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

July 16, 2024 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on July 16, 2024, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Craig Rood presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee, Chairman 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities 

Ms. Kayla Manniko, Director of Foundation 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Commissioner   

 

Mr. Rood called the meeting to order and asked for a mission moment to be shared.  Ms. 

Richardson shared a mission moment and introduced Ms. Kayla Manniko, the new Executive 

Director of Foundation, as a guest.  Mr. Rood shared a mission moment from social media. 

 

Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Kelsey made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Ms. Love seconded; motion passed.  

 

Mr. Rood asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the June 25, 2024 meeting. Mr. Kelsey 

made a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Johnston seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston ran the metrics report and noted they were on track.  The average completion 

percentage runs between 72% - 77% each month.  There are several work orders on hold as they 

will require approval for flooring replacement. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley reported Pat Davis from the State visited and we did receive approval for Phase I 

and are ready to start on Phase II.  The contractor will be coordinating with Mr. Johnston for the 

building of the temporary partition in the space.  They will then take out the old mixing room 

and complete the renovation of the space.  He said this phase will move quicker as there aren’t as 

many technical requirements.  

  

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Wheatley said we did receive the CMAR estimate from Groathouse.  It did come in higher 

than the original architectural estimate as there were some cosmetic additions to the entire Imaging 

area that were not included in Phase I.  There was also a required code change for an ADA 

bathroom and added sink in the fluoroscopy room.  The overhead structure for the equipment will 

also require some movement of HVAC ducting.  He said the CM fee is kept at the same percentage 

as the original CMAR.   Mr. Wheatley will let Groathouse know they have two weeks to refine the 

76/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 16, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

numbers, but it is a “not too exceed” number. Mr. Rood asked if we have the funds to move forward 

with this project.  Ms. Love said we will use the Building fund reserves to complete this project. 

She said this project is at the top of our prioritized list as the current equipment is at the end of life.  

The two new Xray machines will be presented to Finance & Audit in July also.  Ms. Richardson 

agreed with the available funds to move forward. Mr. Kelsey made a motion to take this project to 

Finance & Audit for review and approval to move to the full Board. Ms. Richardson seconded: 

motion passed.  

 

Laboratory Expansion project - SLIB 

 

Mr. Johnston said the project is underway with digging to locate lines to tie into.  At the OAC 

meeting last week, there was discussion regarding relocation of the existing sewer line.  We have 

historically had issues with this sewer line, due to the minimal slope, since the ED renovation in 

2008.  We have the line flushed every 6 months as a proactive measure.  Groathouse has submitted 

an estimate change order to relocate the sewar line and increase the slope to a required depth.  Mr. 

Kelsey asked if this issue was in the original GMP.  Mr. Johnston said it was a known issue and 

they were going to work around it but found the line was shallower than first thought.  The 

Committee agreed we should take the opportunity to correct the sewer line with this project.  Ms. 

Love asked if the decision would hold up the project or will the Finance to Board timeline work 

for this change order also.   Mr. Wheatley said the timeline will work and he will work with 

Groathouse to get a final change order put together for the Finance & Audit meeting. Mr. Rood 

asked if there had been any other surprises.  Mr. Wheatley said they brought in Wester Engineers 

for field investigations.  Mr. Kelsey made a motion to take the sewer line change order to Finance 

& Audit for review and approval to move to the full Board.  Mr. Johnston seconded: motion passed.  

 

MOB Entrance – SLIB 

 

Mr. Wheatley said the bid packet was released for bid, as required by SLIB, last week.  There will 

need to be an addendum issued.  He is hoping we can get some competitive bids.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked his thoughts on contractor availability.  Mr. Wheatley said they are seeing the lack of 

resources down to the subcontractor level.  He said the lower scope and technical requirements of 

this project may bring some interesting players to the table.  There are some residential contractors 

wanting to move into small commercial projects. 

 

Foundation Area Renovation 

 

Ms. Love is meeting with Ms. Manniko and Mr. Johnston this week to review the project grant 

and see what can be done at a minimum to get this project moving.  We have received these funds 

and are required to report quarterly and annually on how the funds are being used and the progress 

of the project. 

  

Master Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson said there wasn’t any update as we continue to work with PACT Studios on the 

block planning.  They have given us several options and we need to meet internally for prioritizing 

and funding discussions. 

 

 

77/80



 

 

Minutes of the July 16, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

New Business 

 

No new business was discussed. 

 

 

Other 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 20, 2024; 2:30P – 3:30P.   

 

Mr. Rood adjourned the meeting at 3:14 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

78/80



 

Board  Board Compliance Committee Meeting 
   Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

July 22, 2024 
Present via Zoom: Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, Irene Richardson, CEO, Kandi Pendleton, Trustee-
Chair, Barbara Sowada, Trustee, April Prado, Foundation & Compliance.  

 

Minutes 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:06am by Barbara Sowada. 
Agenda 
The Jully 22. 2024, agenda was approved as written, Irene made the motion and Suzan seconded it.  
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from April 22, 2024, were brought forward. They were approved as written; Suzan 
made the motion and Irene seconded it.  

 

New Business 
a. Disinfection/Sterilization Audit. April reported on the presented “Disinfection/Sterilization 

Audit”. She stated that several policies were reviewed for compliance with both The Joint 
Commission and MHSC process. She added that this audit took place in several departments 
including, Central Sterile, Clinic OB & GYN, Urology and ENT. She briefly went over some of the 
data and highlights from the report. She continued that MHSC currently, and for the last three 
years has had a 0% infection rate from all COLO (anything with the colon) and HYST (anything 
with the female reproductive system) procedures done here. She added that because of some 
staffing turnover, she is still working with Quality to get the hospital’s official infection rate. It 
has been reported to be .034%, which is well below the national benchmark of 2-4%. April 
stated that she will add this information as an addendum when she receives it. Barbara asked 
where Radiology’s sterilization is taking place and April stated that this is taking place in Central 
Sterile, but Radiology just received a new Trophon sterilization machine, and they will be able to 
utilize that in their department. April added that she would be happy to look at their process 
and spot audit them after they are up and running. She will also add this information to the 
audit as an addendum.    

b. Email sent to employees regarding viewing own medical records. Suzan presented the email that 
went out to all employees last week. She reported that we have seen an increase in employees 
getting into their own records and that HR needed specific verbiage to help with the corrective 
actions. Suzan stated that this email explains why employees can’t be in their records and 
explained the patient portal that they should be using. Suzan stated that she has received 
several emails from staff stating that they were unaware that they couldn’t access their own 
records, and some had no idea that the portal existed. The employees also stated that this 
additional information was very useful. Kandi added that this information was helpful to her as 
well. Suzan stated that we have an obligation to make sure all medical records are secure and 
that every year employees must sign off stating that they will do just that. After further review 
of the sign off sheet, Suzan stated that the is going to change the verbiage so that it is clearer.    

 

Summary Report 
a. Audits- Suzan presented the annual work plan and stated that the “Falls Audit” has been 

completed as well as the “Sterilization Audit” this year. She continued that the next 

 

79/80



 

audit will be the “Vendor and Accounts Payable Audit”. April and Suzan discussed who 
will need to be involved with this audit-accounts payable, material management, and 
the CFO were brought up. April will get some meetings scheduled with these people. 
The committee asked for a timeline and April stated that she would not have one until 
after meeting with some of the needed people. Suzan stated that she would work with 
April to get a timeline and updates to the board as soon as possible.  

b. HIPAA. The HIPAA report was presented for review. Suzan briefly went over the process 
for HIPAA reports, stating that Oracle (P2Sentinel) sends reports to April, April 
investigates them and adds them to Cerner, HR receives them and decides corrective 
action. Suzan pointed out that we currently have NO open cases. Barabra asked if the 
Director/Supervisor is involved with the corrective action. Suzan replied that yes, the 
Director/Supervisor is involved, and that HR acts as more of a reference point. HR 
reminds the supervisor if this employee is a repeat offender and what corrective action 
should be taken for the violation. Barbara asked if the Director/Supervisor has their 
employees HR file. Irene stated that Directors have access to Performance Manager 
which is the hospitals program for HR files.      

c. Exclusionary Report. The exclusionary report for April, May and June was presented. 
Suzan briefly explained that this report comes from the OIG, and she has never seen one 
of providers on this list.  

 

Additional Discussion  
Suzan reminded the committee that she had left copies of the “General Compliance Program Guidance” 
from the OIG with Cindy in Administration for them to pick up. She stated that this is a great reference 
guide for this committee. Suzan also asked the committee if there were any other reports that they 
would like to see. Kandi stated that the audits are the item that she most wants to see.  

 

Next Meeting    

The next meeting is scheduled for October 28th @ 9:00am.  

 

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:36am 

 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

April Prado, Recording Secretary 
 

80/80


	Agenda - August 7, 2024 Mtg
	July 1, 2024 Regular Meeting
	Board of Trustees Policy – Appointment to Board Committee Policy
	Orientation Memo Infection Prevention Noreen Hove second read and action august 7 2024
	2024 IP Plan
	Quality Committee
	Capital Expenditure FY25 1 Luminos Agile Max X Ray System August 2024
	Capital Expenditure FY25 2 YSIO XPREE Digital X Ray System August 2024
	Laboratory Expansion Change Order – Sewar Line
	Medical Imaging Phase II CMAR – Groathouse
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee Meeting Information
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee
	Compliance Committee

